MINUTES OF THE DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE (DDC) MEETING DIBRUGARH DISTRICT FOR THE MONTH OF AUGUST, 2023 HELD ON 28/08/2023 AT 10:00 AM

VENUE: Conference Hall, DC's Office DATE: 28th August ,2023 at 10.00 AM

The meeting was presided over by Shri Bikram Kairi IAS, District Commissioner, Dibrugarh. At the very beginning he welcomed all the members present in the meeting.

Sl. No	Sector	Administrative Department	Scheme/ Project/ Programme		Decisi	on/ Action to	be taken		Agency responsible & Timeline
1	Social Sector	Education- School Education: Elementary &		following	ector of S details on Schools up	constructi	on of Bo	resented the ys Toilet in 21-22:	rincinc
		Secondary		Name of the schools	Sanction amount	Amount received	Work progress (%)	Remarks	
				Chachoni high school	3,18,000.00	2,22,600.00	In progress (60%)	Uc submitted	Inspector of School, Dibrugarh
				Moderkhat src high school	3,18,000.00	2,22,600.00	In progress (60%)	Uc submitted	
				Tengakhat higher secondary school	3,18,000.00	2,22,600.00	In progress (60%)	Uc submitted	
				nos. of sch Mid-Day M The Inspect of deterior	ools have refeat Rice. tor of School ating cond Model School parting their y Commist f School, D ich were fac	ol, Dibruga itions of to ool and dif- ir duties du- sioner, Di- ibrugarh to cing difficu	rh also rais he approa- ficulties fa e to road co brugarh d	irected the	

2	Social Sector	Food, Civil Supplies & Consumer Affairs	The following details have been presented in regards to the Food, Civil Supplies & Consumer Affairs Department: Total existing Ration Cards in the district: 2,40,660 Nos. Total beneficiaries: 7,35,050 Nos. Inclusion of new beneficiary's target: 2,06,349 Nos. Total beneficiaries digitized as on 17/08/2023: 1,42,282 Nos. Target achieved: 68.95%	Deputy Director, Food, Civil Supplies & Consumer Affairs
3	Social Sector	Health & Family Welfare	Regarding Maternal Death, the Joint Director, Health Dibrugarh informed that only one case reported since April, 2023. The Joint Director, Health Dibrugarh informed that total 51 nos. of Child Death have been reported till date since April, 2023. Regarding Wage Compensation Scheme the Joint Director, Health Dibrugarh informed that 758 nos. of Beneficiaries registered in the portal. The DC, Dibrugarh suggested to open India Post Payment Account for the beneficiaries of Wage Compensation Scheme.	Joint Director Health & Family Welfare
			The Joint Director, Health Dibrugarh raise the issue of handing over of ICU's Hospital at Naharkatia. The DC, Dibrugarh asked the Executive Engineer, PWD Building (CDN) to immediately handover the hospital and also to check the seepage issue.	Executive Engineer, PWD Building (CDN)
4	Social Sector	Sports and Youth Welfare	The DC, Dibrugarh asked the District Sports Officer, Dibrugarh to list out the issues regarding approach road/ utility shifting of electric pole and modifications of sports facilities etc. for pursuance with higher authority. Regarding organizing the event of Khel Maharan-an initiative of the Govt. of Assam to identify and nurture sports talents at the grass root level across the state the DC, Dibrugarh asked the District Sports Officer, Dibrugarh to facilitate the event and also to co-ordinate with other departments in this regard.	District Sports Officer

5	Social Sector	Social Welfare		presented	strict Social the follower the Mon	owing de	etails rega	arding S	creening	Distr Soci Welfa
				Total Children	Total Screened Children	Status of S	SAM Childre	en		Offic
			Status of SAM Children			Total SAM Detected	No of Children send to NRC	Upgrade d from SAM to Normal	Death in SAM	
				88038	78383	891	9	339	0	
			Status of MAM	Total MAM	Status of M	MAM Child	ren	Nor	us of mal dren	
			Children		Degraded to SAM	Upgrade Normal	d to Deat	th		
				4342	12	1804	0	7315	0	
			Pradhan Mantri Matru Vandana Yojana	Target FY- 2023-24 (F 1st Living 2- Child/ As per C population population based))	presented Tota fentative Tota farget Y-2023- 4 (2nd firl hild/ As per populatio based))	the follor Ach ative et Apri 2023- As Lst I Chile	eivme Ach from from 23 to 23 to 23 (23 (Chil	Velfare (ils:	Officer,	
		6		7125	3492 100	50,0		949 7.17%)	2672	
				The DC, D	Dibrugarh :	asked the	District	Social W	/elfare	

	Social Sector	Social Welfare		Regarding Disability Certificate Upload (Unique Disability ID) the District Social Welfare Officer, Dibrugarh stated the following details: Total Disability Certificat of UDID Digitized Applicati on Variation Variat	District Social Welfare Officer
6	Economic			The District Agricultural Officer, Dibrugarh informed	
	Development	Agriculture		the following details on PM-Kisan scheme:	District
				1 Farm Family as per Census 2015-16 111006 Nos.	Agricultural Officer
				2 Farmer Registered in Portal 69036 Nos.	
			PM-Kisan scheme	3 Eligible On Portal 59,947 Nos.	
				4 Saturation (%) 54%	
				Aadhaar Related	
				1 Aadhaar Authenticated out of Eligible Nos.	
				2 Aadhaar Authentication Pending out of Eligible Nos.	
	.5			3 Total EKYC Done out of Eligible 38,234 Nos.	
				4 e-KYC Pending (Out of Aadhaar Authenticated) 1349 Nos.	-
				Aadhaar Seeded with Bank Accounts (Out 30,605 of Aadhaar Authenticated) Nos.	

Economic Development Agriculture Land Related Land Record Accepted Land Record Uploaded out of Eligible (%) 100% Land Record Uploaded out of Eligible (%) 100% Eligible Pending for Land Details Seeding 2 Nos. Other Details Agricultural officer Payment certificate issued for the quadrimester April 2023 to July 2023 Nos. The DC, Dibrugarh informed that there would be a separate meeting to be held to discuss the progress of the schemes of Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that 91 nos. of STW (84 Disea, 07 Solar) commissioning have been going on. Assistant Executive Engineer, Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that the following works have been going on: Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block, Panitola , Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 82,70,240,37) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,55,500,00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,55,500,00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,55,500,00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVII at Moran Seed Farm Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs. 72,04,487,74)				6 No. of Accounts not Seeded with Aadhar 2332 Nos.	
Economic Development Land Record Accepted					
Development 1		Economic	Agriculture	Land Related	
District Agricultural Development Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that there would be a separate meeting to be held to discuss the progress of the schemes of Agriculture Engineer, Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that the following works have been going on: Assistant Executive Engineer, Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that the following works have been going on: Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block, Panitola , Dibrugarh informat more than the following works damped to the following works the progress of the section of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500,00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500,00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVII at Maria Seed Farm Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500,00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVII at Maria Seed Farm Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500,00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVII at Maria Seed Farm Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500,00)			Agriculture	60,404	
2 Land Record Uploaded out of Eligible (%) 100% 3 Eligible Pending for Land Details Seeding 2 Nos. Other Details 1 Aadhar Authenticated With land seeding and PFMS Accepted Nos. 2 Payment certificate issued for the quadrimester April 2023 to July 2023 Nos. 3 Self-Registered Beneficiaries (Online 7,988 Application Received) Nos. The DC, Dibrugarh informed that there would be a separate meeting to be held to discuss the progress of the schemes of Agriculture Department. Regarding installation of STW (Diesel/Electrical/Solar) Ph II, the Assistant Executive Engineer, Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that the Keening Department, Dibrugarh informed that the following works have been going on. Assistant Executive Engineer, Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that the following works have been going on: • Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF - XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block, Panitola , Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 82,70,240,37) • Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF - XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500,00) • Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF - XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500,00)				Land Record Accepted	District
The DC, Dibrugarh informed that there would be a separate meeting to be held to discuss the progress of the schemes of Agricultural Engineering Agricultural Engineering Physical Engineer, Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that the following works have been going on: Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block, Panitola, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVII at Moran Seed Farm Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00)				2 Land Record Unloaded out of Fig. 11. (90)	
Other Details 1				2 Land Record Optoaded out of Eligible (%) 100%	Officer
Aadhar Authenticated With land seeding 34,339 and PFMS Accepted Nos.	-			3 Eligible Pending for Land Details Seeding 2 Nos.	
Payment certificate issued for the quadrimester April 2023 to July 2023 Nos.			3	Other Details	
and PFMS Accepted Payment certificate issued for the quadrimester April 2023 to July 2023 Nos. Self-Registered Beneficiaries (Online 7,988 Application Received) The DC, Dibrugarh informed that there would be a separate meeting to be held to discuss the progress of the schemes of Agriculture Department. Regarding installation of STW (Diesel/Electrical/Solar) Ph II, the Assistant Executive Engineer, Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that 91 nos. of STW (84 Diesel, 07 Solar) commissioning have been going on. Assistant Executive Engineer, Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that the following works have been going on: Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVII at Panitola Dev. Block, Panitola, Dibrugah (Contract amount Rs. 82,70,240.37) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVI at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF — XXVI at Moran Seed Farm Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs.				Aadhar Authenticated With land seeding 34,339	
2 quadrimester April 2023 to July 2023 Nos.				I DED 40 4	
2 quadrimester April 2023 to July 2023 Nos.				Payment certificate issued for the 28.071	
The DC, Dibrugarh informed that there would be a separate meeting to be held to discuss the progress of the schemes of Agriculture Department. Regarding installation of STW (Diesel/Electrical/Solar) Ph II, the Assistant Executive Engineer, Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that 91 nos. of STW (84 Diesel, 07 Solar) commissioning have been going on. Assistant Executive Engineer, Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that the following works have been going on: Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Panitola Dev. Block, Panitola , Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 82,70,240,37) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXV at Moran Seed Farm Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs.				1 2	
The DC, Dibrugarh informed that there would be a separate meeting to be held to discuss the progress of the schemes of Agriculture Department. Regarding installation of STW (Diesel/Electrical/Solar) Ph II, the Assistant Executive Engineer, Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that 91 nos. of STW (84 Diesel, 07 Solar) commissioning have been going on. Assistant Executive Engineer, Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that the following works have been going on: Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Panitola Dev. Block, Panitola , Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 82,70,240,37) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXV at Moran Seed Farm Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs.				Self-Registered Beneficiaries (Online 7 099	
separate meeting to be held to discuss the progress of the schemes of Agriculture Department. Agricultural Engineering Regarding installation of STW (Diesel/Electrical/Solar) Ph II, the Assistant Executive Engineer, Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that 91 nos. of STW (84 Diesel, 07 Solar) commissioning have been going on. Assistant Executive Engineer, Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that the following works have been going on: Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Panitola Dev. Block, Panitola , Dibrugah (Contract amount Rs. 82,70,240.37) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXV at Moran Seed Farm Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs.				3 4 12 2 5 10	
separate meeting to be held to discuss the progress of the schemes of Agriculture Department. Agricultural Engineering Regarding installation of STW (Diesel/Electrical/Solar) Ph II, the Assistant Executive Engineer, Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that 91 nos. of STW (84 Diesel, 07 Solar) commissioning have been going on. Assistant Executive Engineer, Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that the following works have been going on: Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Panitola Dev. Block, Panitola , Dibrugah (Contract amount Rs. 82,70,240.37) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXV at Moran Seed Farm Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs.				The DC Dibragarh informal that d	
Schemes of Agriculture Department. Personance Development				separate meeting to be held to discuss the progress of the	
Development Engineering Ph II, the Assistant Executive Engineer, Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that 91 nos. of STW (84 Diesel, 07 Solar) commissioning have been going on. Assistant Executive Engineer, Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that the following works have been going on: Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Panitola Dev. Block, Panitola, Dibrugah (Contract amount Rs. 82,70,240.37) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXV at Moran Seed Farm Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs.	7	Feonomic	Agricultural	schemes of Agriculture Department.	
Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that 91 nos. of STW (84 Diesel, 07 Solar) commissioning have been going on. Assistant Executive Engineer, Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that the following works have been going on: Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Panitola Dev. Block, Panitola , Dibrugah (Contract amount Rs. 82,70,240.37) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXV at Moran Seed Farm Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs.				Ph II, the Assistant Executive Engineer Agricultural	Againtout
Assistant Executive Engineer, Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that the following works have been going on: Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Panitola Dev. Block, Panitola , Dibrugah (Contract amount Rs. 82,70,240.37) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXV at Moran Seed Farm Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs.				Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that 91	
Assistant Executive Engineer, Agricultural Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that the following works have been going on: Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Panitola Dev. Block, Panitola , Dibrugah (Contract amount Rs. 82,70,240.37) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXV at Moran Seed Farm Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs.				nos. of STW (84 Diesel, 07 Solar) commissioning have been going on.	
Department, Dibrugarh informed that the following works have been going on: Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Panitola Dev. Block, Panitola , Dibrugah (Contract amount Rs. 82,70,240.37) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXV at Moran Seed Farm Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs.					750
Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Panitola Dev. Block, Panitola , Dibrugah (Contract amount Rs. 82,70,240.37) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXV at Moran Seed Farm Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs.				Department, Dibrugarh informed that the following	
hall under RIDF – XXVII at Panitola Dev. Block, Panitola , Dibrugah (Contract amount Rs. 82,70,240.37) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXV at Moran Seed Farm Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs.				works have been going on:	
Panitola , Dibrugah (Contract amount Rs. 82,70,240.37) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXV at Moran Seed Farm Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs.				Construction of Knowledge Centre with training	
82,70,240.37) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXV at Moran Seed Farm Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs.				Panitola Dibrugah (Contract amount Pa	
hall under RIDF – XXVII at Barbaruah Dev. Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXV at Moran Seed Farm Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs.				82,70,240.37)	
Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs. 75,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXV at Moran Seed Farm Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs.				Construction of Knowledge Centre with training	
T5,45,500.00) Construction of Knowledge Centre with training hall under RIDF – XXV at Moran Seed Farm Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs.				Block Campus, Dibrugarh (Contract amount Rs	
Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs.			1	75,45,500.00)	
Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs.				hall under RIDF – XXV at Moran Seed Farm	
/2,04,48/./4)				Campus, Moran (Contract amount Rs.	
				72,04,407.74)	

8	Economic		The District Value of Company	
0	Development	Animal	The District Veterinary Officer, Dibrugarh informed the	
	Bevelopment	Husbandry and	following details:	District
-		Veterinary	- Auto in the	Veterinary
		1.50	Artificial Insemination done during the month of Leby (2022 - 700)	Officer
1		Department	July/ 2023 – 709 nos.	
			■ Calf Born during the month of July/2023 – 283	
			nos.	
			The District Veterinary Officer, Dibrugarh presented the	
			following details on treatment/castration vaccination for	
			the month of June, 2023:	
			Nos. Of Cases Treated	
			Cattle -2167	
			Buffalo – 162	
			Pig- 7250	
1 1			Poultry – 1640	
			Goat - 629	
			Total - 13096	
			Nos. Of Castration Done Bull – 300	
			Pig- 716	
			Goat - 629	
			Total -1645	
			Nos. Of Animal Vaccinated During	
			SF- 5197	
			RD/DP- 1700	
			ARV- 848	
	1		HS+BQ- 350 Total - 8095	
			Regarding Kisan Credit Card (KCC) the District	
			Veterinary Officer, Dibrugarh informed the following:	
			■ Total Target: 2000 Nos.	
			 Total application accepted & send to 	
			Bank: 999 Nos.	
			 Total application sanctioned by Bank : 205 Nos. 	
			Total application Rejected by Bank :	1
			353 Nos.	
			 Application pending at Bank : 441 Nos. 	
			The DC, Dibrugarh asked the District	
			Veterinary Officer, Dibrugarh and Lead District	
			Manager to discuss the matter and resolve the	
			pendency.	

9	Economic	Doing	The DC D'I . I . I D'	
	Development	Dairy Development	The DC, Dibrugarh asked District Dairy Development Officer, Dibrugarh to identify locations of abundant cattle population and also to proposed sites for Milk Procurement Centre.	Dairy Development Officer
10	Economic Development	Lead District Manager	The DC, Dibrugarh asked the Lead District Manager, Dibrugarh to resolve all the KCC related issues of Animal Husbandry and Veterinary Department, Fishery Department and Agriculture Department and in this regard conduct a meeting with Bank Branches and concerned departments.	District Manager
11	Economic Development	Legal Metrology Department	The Inspector of Legal Metrology Department, Dibrugarh informed that the Verification and Stamping Fees collection during the month of July, 2023 was Rs. 1,07,455.00.	Inspector of Legal Metrology Department
12	Economic Development	Fishery Department	The District Fishery Development Officer, Dibrugarh informed that the procurement process has been under process for 9 nos. of three wheelers under Rural Infrastructure Development Fund (RIDF XXVI). The District Fishery Development Officer, Dibrugarh informed that procurement of machineries have been ongoing for Feed Mill at Joypur, Naharkatia. The District Fishery Development Officer, Dibrugarh informed that total 726 nos. of KCC proposals have been submitted to the different bank branches. Out of these, 90 nos. of proposals have been rejected and 614 nos. of proposal have been pending in banks. Only 22 nos. of proposal have been sanctioned so far.	District Fishery Development Officer
13	Economic Development	Handloom and Textile Department	The Assistant Director, Handloom & Textile Department, Dibrugarh presented the following details on Swanirbhar Naari Scheme achieved so far: Total 6442 nos. weavers applied for registered SWANIRBHAR NAARI portal for the year 2023-24. 5760 nos. of weavers have been approved. 629 nos. of weavers have been pending at the portal. 53 nos. of weavers have been rejected. Regarding a skill development scheme "SAMARTH" under Ministry of Textiles, Govt. of India in collaboration with Directorate of Handloom & Textiles,	Assistant Director, Handloom and Textile

	Economic Development	Handloom and Textile Department	Assam the Assistant Director, Handloom & Textile Department, Dibrugarh informed the following: 30 nos. Trainees will impart in Jacquard Weaving in each Handloom Production Cum Training Centre Namrup for 45 days training. Total 6 nos. batch would be trained up in HTPC. Training of 4th Batch was completed at HTPC, Namrup. Collection of application forms and registration were still going on for all the above centers. Total 99 nos. Weavers have completed their training	Assistant Director, Handloom and Textile
14	Economic Development	Sericulture	The Assistant Director, Sericulture Dibrugarh informed that 51740 Kg of Eri Cut Cocoon, 1120 Kg. of Muga Raw Silk and 404 Kg. of Mulberry Raw Silk have been produced for the month of July, 2023. The targets for the financial year 2023-24 have not yet been received from the Directorate of Sericulture. The Assistant Director, Sericulture Dibrugarh informed that due to usage of pesticide in the tea garden areas the production of Mulberry has significantly reduced in the district hence the DC, Dibrugarh asked him to evaluate the consequences of pesticide over mulberry production. The DC, Dibrugarh directed the Assistant Director, Sericulture Dibrugarh to analyse the production trends of Eri, Muga and Mulberry of the last 10 years.	Assistant Director, Sericulture
15	Economic Development	Industries and Commerce Department	The General Manager, District Industries and Commerce Department, Dibrugarh presented the following details on Prime Minister Employment Generation Programme: Financial Year Target MM Agency wise Appli cation Received Application Forwarded to Bank Sanctioned by Bank	General Manager, District Industries and Commerce

	Economic	Industries and		The G	eneral	Manager,	Distric	t Industr	ries and	
	Development	Commerce		Comme	rce De	epartment,	Dibrug	arh infor		General
		Department		followin	g detail:	s on PM-F	ME Sche	me:		Manager,
				Financial Year	Target	Application Forwarded	Pending	Sanctioned	Rejected	District Industries and
				rear		to Bank	at	by	by	Commerce
							Bank	Bank	Bank	
				2022-23	186	149	43	34	106	
				2023-24	288	41	22	5	5	
			×							
				The G	eneral	Manager,	Distric	t Industr	ies and	. Al
				Commer	ce Dep	artment, D	Dibrugarh	informed	that the	
				Udyam I	Registra	tion for the	e month	of July, 20	023 have	
				for the fi	nancial	ading to Co	umulativ 24.	e total of 2	2537 nos.	
								1 3.6	D	
				about the	status c	arh asked to f procurem	ent in ter	ms of Mus	er, DICC	District
				in the di	strict, s	ince it was	identifi	ed as a cro	op under	Agricultural Officer
				"One Dis	strict On	e Product"	Scheme		-0	Officer
16	Economic	Panchayat &		The Chie	ef Execu	itive Office	er, Zila l	Parishad D	ibrugarh	Chief
	Development	Rural Development		informed G have be	that the	percentag	e of com	pletion of	PMAY -	Executive
		эсторинен		G Have b	een 83.7	1%.				Officer, Zila
				Regardir	ıg Awa	s Plus sch	eme 74	l I nos. ha	ve been	Parishad
				sanction	ed, 728	2 nos. hav	e receiv	ed 1st inst	alment	
				5146 nos	s. have	received	2 nd insta	alment, 28	355 nos.	
				Complete	elved .	3 rd instalnerified so fa	nent an	d 489 no	s. have	
		1		- inprote	a una vi	criffed 50 fa	11.			
				The Chie	f Evecu	tive Office	r 7:lo D	louish - J. D.	, ,	
			1	The Chief Executive Officer, Zila Parishad Dibrugarh informed that 86.8% of Aadhaar seeding have been					ve been	
				achieved t	for activ	e Workers	under M	GNERGA	. deen	
				Regarding	g Amrit	Sarovar sc	heme, th	e Chief Ex	ecutive	
				Officer, Z	ila Paris	shad Dibru	garh info	ormed that	86 nos	
				of Amrit S	arovars	have been	excavate	d, plantation	on work	
				7 nos., and	Work:	ted for 47 r shed compl	eted for	ing compl	eted for	
								2 11001 01	ontos.	
		1								
- 33-4 1 /16-										

17	Economic	Soil	The Divisional Officer, Soil Conservation Dibrugarh	
	Development	Conservation	informed that E-Tendering have been going on for the scheme "R.C.C. Water Distribution Project at Bebejia Pathar", under RIDF-XXVIII. The Divisional Officer, Soil Conservation Dibrugarh presented the following details on the project Dibrugarh-	Divisional Officer, Soil Conservation
			I (Bosagaon) WDC-PMKSY-2.0:	
			SL NO Head PROJEC T COST (Rs in Lakh) PROJEC (Rs in Lakh) PROJEC (Rs in Lakh) PROJEC T COST (Rs in Lakh) PROGRES (REMARK S OF WORKS (RS IN TAKEN) PROGRES (REMARK S OF WORKS) REMARK (RS IN TAKEN) PROGRES (REMARK S IN TAKEN S IN TA	
			NRM (Natural 1 Resource 42.2000 Field Bund 16 %	
			Managemen t) Drainage Channel - 2	
			27 Nos. 11.88000 Individual beneficiaries 3 Livelihood Works under progress	
			15.00000 SHG 0 %	
18	Reforms, Governance Facilitation & Regulation	Excise	In regard to the revenue collected during current financial year the Inspector of Excise, Dibrugarh informed that Rs.39.64 Cr. have been collected till the month of July, 2023 out of the Revenue Target of 179.51 Cr.	Inspector of Excise
19	Infrastructure	Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (Urban)	The City Project Manager, Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (Urban) informed that out of 5,626 nos. of approved beneficiaries, 4,340 nos. of Beneficiaries have been finalized, 3,236 nos. of beneficiaries have received 1st Installment, 2,109 nos. of beneficiaries have received 2nd installment, 542 nos. have received 3rd installment and 1,732 nos. of houses have been completed so far.	City Project Manager, PMAYU
20	Infrastructure	Irrigation Department	The Executive Engineer, Irrigation (Dibrugarh-Lahowal-Chabua Division) informed that both the scheme under RIDF(NABARD)-XXVIII for the year 2022-23 at Chabua LAC (i) scheme Chetia Pather Solar Powered MDTW I/S (1 points) and (ii) Changmai Pathar Gaon Solar Powered MDTW been ongoing and 35% of physical progress have been attained so far.	Executive Engineer, Irrigation

	Infrastructure	Irrigation	The Executive Engineer, Irrigation (Naharkatia	
		Department	and Duliajan Division) informed that the schemes	Executive
			(i) LIS from Mirikabeel at Mathaoni Gaon under SOPD	Engineer,
			for the year 2022-23 (01point)' and (ii) 'Construction of	Irrigation
			MDTW Solar Irrigation Scheme at 2No. Mohmari Gaon	
			under SOPD-G for the year 2022-23' have been ongoing	
			at present.	
			an prosonni	
			The Executive Engineer, Irrigation (Moran-Tingkhong	
			Division) informed that 2nos. of schemes ongoing at	
			Moran Sub Division:	
			I. MDTW Points at Demow Kinar Gohain Gaon	
			and Kuch Gaon (3 Points) under RIDF-XXVIII	
			(NABARD) for the year 2022-23 with 19% of	
			physical progress so far.	
			II. (LIS from river Demow at 2 No Bezgaon area	
100		D	(2 Points) under SOPD for the year 2022-23	
			with 5% of physical progress.	
			The Executive Engineer, Irrigation (Moran-Tingkhong	*
			Division) informed that at Tingkhong Sub-Division one	
			scheme "Solar Powered MDTW Irrigation Scheme at	
			Hologuri Tipomia GP (1 point) under RIDF-XXVIII for	
	1.5		the year 2022-23" have been ongoing with 3% physical	
			progress.	
			The DC, Dibrugarh asked Executive Engineers	
			Irrigation Departments to share the list of Irrigation	
			scheme with Agriculture Department so as to promote 2 nd cropping in Dibrugarh.	
			2 cropping in Diorugarn.	
			The DC, Dibrugarh also directed the Executive	
			Engineer, Irrigation and District Agriculture Officer,	District
			Dibrugarh to spread awareness and guide farmers on	Agricultural
			Methods and Pattern of agricultural practice through	Officer
			effective implementation of Irrigation facilities.	
21	Infrastructure	Water Resource	The Executive Engineer, Water Resource Department	Executive
	-"		Dibrugarh informed following details:	Engineer,
			■ 089/ of -bysical	Water
			98% of physical progress have been completed for the calculating "P/S of Maintain Pin Park	Resource
			for the scheme "R/S of Moinamiri Ring Bund	
			(Baruah Gaon to Sessamukh" under SOPD and	
			the targeted date of completion would be	
			November, 2023.	
			• For the scheme "Construction of Ring bund to	
			protect Bordoibam area along the L/B of river	
	Infrastructure	Water Resource	Sessa" the physical progress have been achieved	

			till was 35% and would be completed by December, 2023. The scheme "Construction of Ikorani ring bund on the left bank of river Disam from Ghuguloni	Executive Engineer, Water Resource
			to Paniabura village" have achieved 95% of physical progress and the targeted date for completion would be September, 2023. The Executive Engineer, Water Resource Department Dibrugarh informed the following details regarding progress of work under RIDF-XXVIII:	
			SL. NAME OF SCHEME UNT PHYSI IN CAL LAK PROGRESS RESS	
			Restoration of flood damages at ₹ 1 Pukhurijan area from the devastation of river Brahmaputra Work is in progress. Target date NIL of completion December 2023	
			Restoration of flood damages from Nagaghuli to Philonoguri of Oakland dyke including construction of retirement Restoration of flood damages from Nagaghuli to Philonoguri of A665. 81 Work is in progress. Target date of completion December 2023	
			Restoration of flood damages at Rohmoria area on left bank of ₹ 3 river Brahmaputra 1534. 16% from Lokasoni to 62 Liting gaon at 2nd & 3rd km	
22	Infrastructure	Assam Power Distribution Company Limited	The Chief Executive Officer, APDCL Dibrugarh informed that 84 percent work have been completed under Deendayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojana. He further informed that 16886 Nos. of households (Ongrid) and 786 Nos. of households (Off-grid) have been electrified.	Chief Executive Officer, APDCL
			The Chief Executive Officer, APDCL Dibrugarh informed that 1507 Nos. of Anganwadi Centres on 0ngrid mode and 13 Nos. of Anganwadi Centres on Off-	

	Infrastructure	Assam Power Distribution Company Limited	grid mode have been electrified whereas 554 Nos. of Primary Schools on On-grid mode and 4 Nos. of Primary Schools on Off-grid mode have been electrified under SOPD scheme. The DC, Dibrugarh asked Chief Executive Officer, APDCL Dibrugarh to complete all ongoing schemes and also asked to cover the electricity transformers with proper bamboo fencing so as to reduce the disasters.	Chief Executive Officer, APDCL
23	Infrastructure	Public Health Engineering	The DC, Dibrugarh suggested the Executive Engineer, Public Health Engineering Department, Dibrugarh to categorized all land related issues. He also suggested to adjust the excess FHTC connections as per requirements. The DC, Dibrugarh directed the Executive Engineer, Public Health Engineering Department, Dibrugarh to issue a final notice to the contractors who have not started the works after obtaining work order under Jal Jeevan Mission. The Executive Engineer, Public Health Engineering Department, Dibrugarh informed that the last day for inclusion under Jal Jeevan Mission would be 31st August, 2023 for left out Schools and Anganwadi Centres. Regarding internal electrification to operationalise JJM connections at Anganwadi Centres the DC, Dibrugarh directed the Executive Engineer, Public Health Engineering Department, Dibrugarh to collect the list of Anganwadi Centre's without internal electricity connection from Additional District Commissioner (Social Welfare), Dibrugarh and also ensure internal electrification of the Anganwadi Centres. There would be a separate meeting with Public Health Engineering Department to discuss the issue of Namsang area.	Executive Engineer, Public Health Engineering
24	Infrastructure	Public Works Department (Roads) Dibrugarh- Lahowal- Moran- Tingkhong Division	The Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (Roads) (DLMT) submitted the following details regarding works proposed as per Cabinet Meeting held on 30.01.2023: Project Concept Paper for the scheme Construction of 15.0 km long, two lane Sessa-Itakhuli Road (Lezai Kolakhowa Road) including ROB at Rly Level Crossing No.MD/3 at Moran LAC has been submitted under NESIDS.	Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (Roads)

Infrastructure Public Works Allotment work have been under progress for the Department scheme Blacktoping of Aghonibari-Khowang Executive (Roads) connecting, 25.0 km Road on embankment at Engineer, Dibrugarh-Tingkhong LAC. Public Works Lahowal-Department DPR under preparation for the scheme Moran-(Roads) Construction of Flyover at Amolapatty Railway Tingkhong Level Crossing No.DD-2 (including Amolapatty Division junction point) for 1.22 km at Dibrugarh, Construction of Flyover at Mancotta Railway Level Crossing No.CS-4 for 1.15 km at Lahowal and Construction of Flyover at Lahowal Railway Level Crossing No.DD-21 for 1.23 km at Lahowal but GAD yet to be approved by Railway and NOC for Amolapatty Railway Level Crossing and Mancotta Railway Level Crossing yet to received. DPR submitted for the scheme Construction of Bridge over river Buridihing (from Aghonibari to Telpani) for 1.56 km, Construction of Bridge over river Disang (from Barua Nagar to Mahmora) for 1.59 km, Construction of Bridge over river Buridihing (from Ramaighat to Lachan Mirigaon) for 3 km, Construction of Bridge connecting Madarkhat-Godabahar Road over river Sessa for 1.80 km, Construction of Bridge over river Demow (from Hunghungia village to Nahorani village) for 1.65 km. Work in progress for the scheme Improvement of Road from Graham Bazar at Old NH 37 to Water Resource Guest House via Paltan Bazar for 2. 10 km. DPR submitted for the scheme Construction of Foot over Bridge at Phoolbagan on Old NH-37 Dibrugarh for 14km and Construction of Foot over Bridge at Thanna Chariali on Mancotta Road Dibrugarh for 14 km. The Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (Roads) Public Works Department (Roads) (DLMT) informed that the schemes "LBT Road To Timona Gaon Via Ghoramara Bazar", "MN Road to Chakalia Pather

Via Nabhakatia No 2, Nabhakatia No 1" and "LBT Road

Infrastructure
Public Works
Department
(Roads)
DibrugarhLahowalMoranTingkhong
Division

To Timona Gaon Via Ghoramara Bazar" under Pradhan Mantri Gram Sadak Yojana (PMGSY-III) would be completed by August, 2023 and September, 2023.

The Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (Roads) (DLMT) presented the details of the new proposals under Pradhan Mantri Gram Sadak Yojana (PMGSY-III):

Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (Roads)

SI. No	Name of Road	Name of LAC	Leng th (KM)	Estima ted Cost (Rs in lakh)
1	MN Road to Noloni Pather via Kekuri Bongali, Dolopa	Tingkhong	5.725	437.45
2	MN Road to Kenya Pather via Kachumari, Noloni Pather, Ouphulia TE, Deroi Grant No.1	Tingkhong	7.30	362.71
3	Azarguri to Padumoni via Silpota	Moran	7.62	578.84

DC, Dibrugarh suggested the Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (Roads) (DLMT) to devise and develop an alternate road to reach Tinsukia so as to reduce the traffic congestion in Dibrugarh during important events.

DC, Dibrugarh informed that the Government has ordered to set up Plastic Waste Management Units in each block and using of 10 percent of plastic waste in road construction as mandate. The Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (Roads) (DLMT) mentioned that good quality useable plastic could be used for road construction in the ratio of 90 percent of Bitumen and 5 percent of plastic waste.

The Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (Roads) (DLMT) informed that 68 percent of physical progress have been achieved so far for the construction of flyover at Junction Point of Convoy Road with NH-37 leading Amulapatty near Jalan Bus Terminus, Dibrugarh. Regarding LA & Zirat cost, a total amount of Rs.23.74 Cr out of 200 Cr. have received and sent to DC office for disbursement. The DC, Dibrugarh

26	Infrastructure	Public Works Department (Roads) Dibrugarh- Lahowal- Moran- Tingkhong Division	informed that he would look into the matter of Land Acquisition. The Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (Roads) (DLMT) mentioned that the road from Graham Bazar to Water Resources Guest House approximately around 1.8 KM of length would be constructed as Gaurab path. As APDCL Dibrugarh have no experience on the preparation of DPR for underground electricity connection the CEO, APDCL Dibrugarh asked the Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (Roads) to send a letter for DPR preparation.	Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (Roads)
25	Infrastructure	Public Works Department Roads (Chabua, Duliajan & Naharkatia Division)	The Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (Roads), CDN, informed that cutting the sides of roads due to installation of Jal Jeevan Mission pipelines was posing threat to the conditions of the roads. The DC, Dibrugarh directed the Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (Roads) to complete all the ongoing schemes within targeted timeline. The Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (Roads) informed that the scheme "MRL01-Chabua to Kumuhat Habi Gaon Bridge No. 1/1, 2/1 and 3/1" would not be completed within timeline.	Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (Roads)
	Infrastructure	Public Works Department Building	The DC, Dibrugarh asked the Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (DLMT) to submit the DPR of Multi-Disciplinary Sports Complex at Khanikar, Dibrugarh immediately. The DC, Dibrugarh directed the Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (DLMT) to conduct a departmental review of all ongoing schemes with the contractors and afterwards the DC, Dibrugarh would review the progress of the schemes. Regarding construction of wooden floor at Indoor Stadium, Multi-Disciplinary Sports Complex at Khanikar, the DC, Dibrugarh asked the Executive Engineer Public Works Department (DLMT) to submit the details proposal for pursue the matter. He also asked to submit all the detail proposals of approaching roads, parking etc. of Sports Infrastructures so as to conduct Khel Maharan smoothly. For the scheme "Wayside Card Parking at Dibrugarh" under CIDF the DC, Dibrugarh directed the Executive	Executive Engineer, Public Works Department Building

	T		Т	1	
		Public Works		Engineer, Public Works Department (DLMT) for utility shifting of electric poles.	
	Infrastructure	Department Building		The DC, Dibrugarh asked the Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (DLMT) to submit the item wise details for the scheme "Repair/ Renovation of District Library at Dibrugarh" under CIDF.	Executive Engineer, Public Works Department
		×		The DC, Dibrugarh suggested to consider human factors while designing and constructing infrastructures and also give instructions to contractors to clear the construction waste after completion of the works.	Building
2				The DC, Dibrugarh asked the Additional District Commissioner, (Health) Dibrugarh to review the construction of Morgue with Mortuary Room at AMC&H, Dibrugarh, Assam.	
			27	The DC, Dibrugarh asked the Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (DLMT) to complete the construction of District Science Centre, Dibrugarh (land Development and Construction of Boundary Wall) Phase -I. as soon as possible.	
×				The DC, Dibrugarh directed Senior Planning Officer, District Planning Cell to review the scheme "Renovation of Auditorium and Construction of Guest House at Chaulkhowa, Dibrugarh" constructed under Untied Fund and also to identify a concerned organization to handover the Auditorium and Guest House.	
				Regarding construction of Moran Sports Complex the DC, Dibrugarh expressed his dissatisfaction on football field hence asked the Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (DLMT) to review the progress of work. He also directed the District Sports Officer, Dibrugarh to co-ordinate with the Engineer with the playfield development requirements.	
	9		٥	As the physical progress is only 11 percent for the Additional Classroom at Tea Garden Model School, Pithaguti T.E the DC, Dibrugarh asked the Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (DLMT) review the progress.	
				The DC, Dibrugarh asked the Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (DLMT) to review the progress and complete all health, school and sports infrastructures on priority basis.	e e

9 -	Infrastructure	Public Works Department Building	Regarding Construction of Jagannath Community Hall cum Skill Centre at Various Tea Garden areas the Executive Engineer, Public Works Department (DLMT) informed that 33 nos. of NOC received out of the total of 52 nos. The DC, Dibrugarh asked to obtain NOC before September, 2023 and also to conduct site visits and prepare feasibility report.	Executive Engineer, Public Works Department Building
27	Infrastructure	Public Works Department National Highway	The Reconstruction of pavement from h 47495 to Ch 65.934 (Length= 17.984 km) of the newly declared NH 315-A (from Jeypore to Hukanjuri) in the state of Assam under Annual Plan for the year 2021-22 on EPC mode have been ongoing.	Executive Engineer, Public Works Department National Highway
28	Infrastructure	Transport Department	The District Transport Officer, Dibrugarh informed that during current FY- Rs. 70.11 Cr. have been collected out of the target of 78.57 Cr.	District Transport Officer,

Towards the end the DC, Dibrugarh asked all Heads of the Department to prioritize the critical infrastructural schemes such as Health, Education and Sports related activity for target date completion. He also asked all HoD's to submit the Power Point Presentations of their concerned departmental progress on the day of the District Development Committee meeting before starting the meeting. He also asked to submit at least a page on interdepartmental co-ordination issues to be discussed in the meeting.

The Meeting ended with vote of thanks from the chair.

Signed by Bikram Kairi Date: 28-09-2023 21:22:26

> District Commissioner Dibrugarh

Memo No.TND-27/8/2023-T&P-DBR Copy to:

Date: 28/09/2023

- The Addl. Chief Secretary to the Govt. of Assam, Transformation and Development Deptt, Dispur, Guwahati -6 for favour of kind information.
- 2) The Commissioner, Upper Assam Division, Jorhat for favour of kind information.
- The Joint Director, Evaluation and Monitoring Division, Transformation and Development Deptt, Dispur Guwahati -6 for favour of kind information.
- The Joint Director, DCP, Transformation and Development Deptt, Dispur Guwahati -6 for favour of kind information.
- 5) All Additional Deputy Commissioner, Dibrugarh for information.
- 6) All Dist. Heads of Departments, Dibrugarh for information and necessary action. They are requested to take action relating to their Deptt./Sector and submit action taken report latest by next 3rd day of the month.
- 7) All Circle Officers, Rev. Circle for information and necessary action.
- The District Informatics Officer, NIC, Dibrugarh. He is requested to upload the minutes in the district website.

(e-signed)

District Commissioner, Dibrugarh

